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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors
of Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Hayward, California
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Hayward Area Recreation and Park District,
(the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
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To the Board of Directors
of Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Hayward, California
Page 2
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the District, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial
position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedules, pension schedules and OPEB
schedules on pages 5–15 and 71–76 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Badawi & Associates, CPAs
Berkeley, California
January 14, 2020
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HAYWARD AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2019

This section of the District’s Annual Financial Report presents a narrative overview and analysis of the
District’s financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2019. District Management recommends this
information be read in conjunction with the District’s financial statements which follow this discussion.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS






As reported on the District’s Government-wide Statement of Net Position, the assets and deferred
outflows of the District exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at June 30, 2019 by $68.7 million
(net position). Of this amount, $90.6 million was the net investment in capital assets, $10.8 million
was restricted for debt service and $.8 million was restricted for special purposes. The District’s
unrestricted net position totaled a negative $33.4 million.
As reported in the District’s Governmental Fund Financial Statements, total fund balance was $127.2
million, a decrease of about $10.8 million from the prior fiscal year, comprising an increase in the
General Fund balance of $1.1 million and decreases in the Capital Projects Fund of $9.8 million and
Debt Service Fund of $2.1 million.
General Fund revenues increased by $.5 million, from $33.8 million in fiscal 2018 to $34.2 million in
fiscal 2019). The increase is due to increases in property taxes and assessments revenues of $1.3
million and interest of $.1 million which were offset by a decrease in rents, concessions and fees of
$1.0 million. Expenditures also increased from the prior year by about $.4 million, from $32.1 million
to $32.5 million, comprised of increases in spending on district management, recreation and golf
program expenditures offset by a decrease in parks expenditures, as well as slight increases in
capital and interest expenditures. Transfers out of the General Fund were up by about $.6 million.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the remaining unassigned fund balance for the General Fund
of $8.7 million (or 27% of the total general fund expenditures of $32.5 million) was held in the Cash
Flow Reserve, per the Board’s Reserve Policy adopted on March 13, 2017.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Hayward Area Recreation
and Park District’s basic financial statements. The financial statements are composed of three parts:
1)
2)
3)

The Government-wide Financial Statements
The Fund Financial Statements
Notes to the Financial Statements

1)
The Government-wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements provide a longer-term view of the District’s activities and
comprise the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. The statements are reported on
the full accrual basis, as used by private sector businesses, and include capital and other long-lived
assets and long-term liabilities not reflected in the fund financial statements. All changes in net assets
are reported as soon as the underlying event takes place, regardless of the timing of the related cash
flow. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in these statements for some items that will only result
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Overview of the Financial Statements, continued
in cash flow in future fiscal periods, such as earned but unused compensating time off and adjustments
to reflect actuarial valuations of liabilities related to pensions and other post-employment benefits.
2)
The Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide more detail of the District’s operations than the governmentwide financial statements. The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.
Major funds account for major financial activities of the District and are presented individually. The
activities of non-major funds are presented in summary, with subordinate schedules presenting the
detail for each of these other funds.
Governmental Funds
All the District’s basic services are considered governmental activities. These services are supported by
general District revenues such as taxes and by specific program revenues such as user fees and charges.
Governmental fund financial statements are prepared on the modified accrual basis, which means they
measure only current financial resources and uses. Capital assets and other long-lived assets, along with
long-term liabilities, are not presented in the governmental fund financial statements. These statements
focus on how cash and other financial assets can readily be converted to available resources and yearend balances that are available for spending. It is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the governmentwide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near-term financing decisions. Both reconciliations of the fund balance sheet and fund
statements of activities are provided to facilitate such a comparison.
The Capital Project Fund and the Debt Service Fund are the two major funds in the governmental fund
in addition to the General Fund.
Comparisons of Budget and Actual financial information are presented only for the General Fund, as
required by GASB 34.

Proprietary Fund
Proprietary funds financial statements are prepared on the full accrual basis and include all the fund’s
assets and liabilities, current and long-term. The District’s only proprietary fund includes the activities
of the internal service insurance fund.
Since the District’s internal service fund provides goods and services internally to the District’s
governmental activities, its activities are reported only in total at the fund level. The District uses the
internal service fund to accumulate and allocate insurance costs among the District’s departments. The
revenues are eliminated in the government-wide financial statements and any related net income or
loss is returned to the activities that created them, along with any residual net assets of the internal
service funds.
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Overview of the Financial Statements, continued
3) Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a complete
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
Financial Statement Analysis
Government-wide Financial Analysis
This analysis focuses on the Net Position and changes in Net Position of the District as a whole.
6/30/2019

6/30/2018

ASSETS
Cash and investments

$

Restricted cash and investments
Other assets
Capital assets net of depreciation
Total assets

14,075,264

$ 9,868,850

113,491,736

125,453,235

675,344

2,058,047

102,158,568

89,633,252

230,400,912

227,013,384

1,529,540

1,586,190

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred refunding loss
Deferred employer OPEB contributions
Deferred pension items
Total deferred outflows of resources

714,148

706,115

4,485,921

5,964,594

6,729,609

8,256,899

7,199,317

4,540,347

LIABILITIES
Other liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year other than OPEB and pensions
Due in more than one year other than OPEB and pension
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability
Total liabilities

8,252,335

9,691,602

119,225,016

127,036,939

7,359,329

7,644,444

24,170,599

25,875,288

166,206,596

174,788,620

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB related
Pension related
Total deferred inflows of resources

380,861

296,723

1,756,409

1,059,245

2,137,270

1,355,968

90,635,643

73,882,338

10,804,902

12,705,525

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted by donor for special purposes
Unrestricted

-

322,039

789,806

1,478,387

(33,443,696)

Total net position

$

7

68,786,655

(29,262,594)
$ 59,125,695

Government-Wide Financial Statement Analysis, continued
Net position reflects the District’s financial position at $68.7 million as of June 30, 2019. The largest
component of the District’s net position is held in capital assets, e.g. land, buildings and improvements,
and infrastructure, as well as computer software and equipment and capital leased vehicles (reflected
less related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.) The District uses these capital assets to
provide services to constituents; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Also,
it should be noted that the resources needed to repay the debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
Net Position Analysis:
Approximately $10.8 million of the District’s net position is restricted for debt service expenditures. The
inclusion of $21 million of pension and $7 million of OPEB liabilities and related deferred inflow and
outflow of resources in the Statement of Net Assets causes the unrestricted net assets portion to be a
negative $33.4 million.
Other Highlights:
 Cash and investments increased by $9.7 million (or 98%) as the net results of operating revenues over
expenses and investment earnings.
 Restricted cash and investments decreased by $17.4 million (or 14%) due to the use of bond proceeds
for capital investments.
 Deferred outflow of resources decreased by $1.5 million (or 18%) due primarily to the decrease in
the annual pension adjustments of $1.5 million.
 Other liabilities increased by $2.7 million (or 59%) due to an increase in capital projects accounts
payable of $2 million and an increase of $.8 million in unearned revenue related to the transition to
accrual accounting for recreation payments, offset by reductions in other current liabilities.
 Noncurrent liabilities other than pension decreased by $9.2 million, due primarily to the annual
principal payments on the 2016 General Obligation Bonds during the year.
 Noncurrent net OPEB liability decreased by $.3 million (or 4%.) This liability is an actuariallydetermined amount and will fluctuate from year to year as does the pension liability figure.
 Noncurrent net pension liability decreased by $1.7 million (or 7%) due to the decrease in the net
pension liability, as determined by the actuarial report prepared by CalPERS.
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Government-Wide Financial Statement Analysis, continued
Change in Net Position- Analysis:
6/30/2019

6/30/2018

REVENUE
Program Revenue:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contribution
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenue:
Taxes and assessments
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
In -lieu fees
Other revenues

$

Total revenue

7,919,831
287,689
1,705,955

$

8,877,326
317,761
1,767,149

37,446,226
2,114,928
220,386
237,994
103,506

34,841,461
1,413,889
219,910
5,653
81,904

50,036,515

47,525,053

3,311,702
12,722,928
15,036,683
4,317,587
4,986,655

3,153,308
12,712,618
15,026,183
4,391,974
5,303,089

40,375,555

40,587,172

9,660,960

6,937,881

59,125,695

52,187,814

EXPENDITURES
General Manager and Business Department
Recreation Department
Park Department
Golf Department
Interest on long-term debt
OPEB Funding (allocated to departments in FY18)
Total expenditures
Increase (decrease) in net position
Net position - beginning balance, as restated
Net position - ending balance

$

68,786,655

$

59,125,695

 Charges for services revenue was down by $1.0 million or 11% related to the $.8 million increase in
the unearned revenue in recreation program registrations. The District’s change in the accounting
policy for the proper accrual tracking of revenue was fully implemented by 6/30/19.
 Operating and capital grants and contributions revenue remained relatively flat, decreasing by $.1
million.
 Taxes and Assessments revenues increased by $2.6 million or 7%, related to the continued
improvement of the economy and property values in Alameda County. The increase was split evenly
between revenue restricted for the repayment of the 2016 General Obligation Bonds and unrestricted
tax and assessment revenue.
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Government-Wide Financial Statement Analysis, continued
 Use of money and property revenue increased by $.7 million or 50% due primarily to the interest
earned on the bond proceeds held by the County.
 In lieu fees increased by $.2 million due to increases in project funding from the City of Hayward
and County of Alameda.
 Management and Administrative Services expenses increased by $158 thousand or 5% due
primarily to increases in staffing.
 Recreation Department expenses remained generally flat this fiscal year, increasing by only $10
thousand overall.
 Park Department expenses increased slightly, by $10 thousand.
 Golf Department expenses decreased by $74 thousand or 2% due to a myriad of minor fluctuations
from last year.
 Interest on Long-Term Debt expense decreased by $316 thousand or 6% due to the annually
decreasing interest component of the 2016 General Obligation Bonds debt service payments.
The statement of change in Net Position represents program revenue, general revenue and general
expenses. Charges for services (a component of program revenue) include recreation program
registration and admission fees, facility rental fees, facility maintenance fees and golf course activities
fees.
General revenue, comprising primarily tax and assessment revenue, is not allocated to programs.
General revenue is used to pay for the costs of governmental operations, programs, and facility
improvement or maintenance.
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Government-Wide Financial Statement Analysis, continued
As shown on the Revenue by Sources chart above, in fiscal 2019:
 $37.4 million or 75% came from tax and assessment revenue
 $7.9 million or 16% came from charges for services
 $2.1 million or 4% came from use of money and property
 $1.7 million or 3% came from capital improvement grants and contributions

As shown on the Functional Expenses chart above, in fiscal 2019:
 Management and Administrative Services expenses were $3.3 million or 8% of total government
expenses
 Recreation Department expenses were $12.7 million or 32% of total government expenses,
 Park Department expenses, $15.1 million or 37% of total government expenses,
 Golf Department expenses, $4.3 million or 11% of total government expenses,
 Interest on long-term debt was $5.0 million or 12% of total governmental expenses.
Fund Financial Statement Analysis
The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows
and balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the
District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
Types of governmental funds reported by the District include the General Fund, Capital Project Fund
and Other Governmental Funds.
As of June 30, 2019, the District’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $122
million, a decrease of $10.8 million from fiscal 2018.
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Fund Financial Statement Analysis, continued
Assets and liabilities and deferred inflow analysis:
Total assets amounted to $127.2 million and mainly consist of cash & investments ($113.5 million
restricted and $13.0 million unrestricted).
Total liabilities amounted to $5.1 million and primarily consisted of accounts payable, accrued payroll
and unearned revenue.
Revenue and expenditure analysis:
Total revenues were $50.9 million, an increase of $4.0 million over the prior fiscal year, comprised of an
increase in property taxes of $2.6 million, an increase of $.9 million in grant revenue, a decrease of $1.0
million in rents, concessions and fees, a $.7 million increase in interest revenues, a $.5 million increase
in donation revenue and a $.2 million increase in in-lieu fees.
Total expenditures increased by $22.1 million or 55%, $11.1 million of which was an increase in project
expenditures (primarily related to the expenditure of bond proceeds) and $10.6 an increase in debt
service payments. General Fund operating expenditures accounted for $.4 million of the total increase
in expenditures.
By-fund analysis:
General Fund
The General Fund is the main operating fund of the District and represents the largest of the District’s
governmental funds. General Fund revenue totaled $34.2 million, an increase of $.4 million or 1% from
the prior year. The primary source of General Fund revenue is property taxes, which totaled $25.6
million or 75% of total revenue, and rents, concessions and fees revenues which totaled $7.9 million or
23% of total revenue.
General Fund expenditures totaled $32.5 million this year, an increase of under $.4 million or 1% from
the prior fiscal year.
Comparing both the unassigned fund balance and the total fund balance to the total expenditures is to
measure the General Fund’s liquidity. The unassigned fund balance was $8.7 million or 27% of total
General Fund expenditures of $32.5 million. Unassigned fund balance represents 89.5% of the general
fund total fund balance in 2019.
Capital Project Fund
The Capital Project Fund revenue was $4.6 million, an increase of $2.2 million, due to increases in grant
revenue of $.9 million, interest revenue of $.6 million, donations of $.5 million and in-lieu fees of $.2
million.
The Capital Project Fund expenditures increased by $11.1 million or over 250%, from $4.4 million to
$15.5 million, due almost entirely to the expenditure of bond proceeds as the bond-funded projects
ramped up.
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Fund Financial Statement Analysis, continued
Other financing sources and uses increased by $.3 million, of which $.6 million of total financing sources
were funds transferred in from the General Fund for non-bond funded projects and leases and $.3
million was the capital lease expenditures themselves.
Debt Service Fund
Debt Service Fund revenues were $10.8 million in 2018 and $12.8 million in 2019, due to the increasing
ad valorem tax collected and restricted for the payment of the Measure F1 bond debt service payments.
The expenditures were $14.2 million this year, an increase of $10.6 million or almost 300% over
expenditures in the prior year of $3.6 million, due to the delay in the first debt service payment on the
2016 General Obligation Bonds. As of June 30, 2019, the Debt Service Fund’s fund balance totaled $12.9
million.
Proprietary Fund
The sole Proprietary Fund (the Insurance Internal Service Fund) had revenues of $.6 million in fiscal
2018 and $.4 million in fiscal 2019, a decrease of $.2 million. The expenses for the fund were $.5 million
in fiscal 2018 and $.6 million in fiscal 2019. As of June 2018, the Proprietary Fund’s fund balance totaled
$1.0 million.
General Fund Actuals vs. Revised Budget Comparison:
The actual General Fund revenue of $34.2 million exceeded the Revised Budget revenue of $34.0 million
by $.2 million, or 1%, mainly resulting from higher than anticipated interest and miscellaneous revenue.
The District’s actual General Fund expenditures were $.3 million less than the fiscal 2019 Revised
Budget. There were offsetting variances as described below:
 District Management personnel costs were under budget by $.6 million.
 Recreation personnel costs exceeded budget by $.4 million.
 Park department personnel costs exceeded budget by $.1 million, offset by services & supplies
expenditures coming in under budget by $.1 million.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets
Governmental fund financial statements record capital asset purchases as expenditures in the period in
which the funds were expended, rather than spreading that cost over the useful life of the asset, to
reflect that the funds are no longer a currently available resource. In the government-wide statement
of net assets presentation, all assets with a useful life longer than one year are depreciated from the date
they are placed in service.
Capital Assets Net of Accumulated Depreciation
6/30/2019
Land

$

25,880,109

6/30/2018
$

25,685,896

Construction in progress

15,107,212

3,165,234

Building and land improvement

59,759,081

59,041,361

1,412,165

1,740,761

102,158,567

89,633,252

Equipment and other
Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

The District’s capital assets as of June 30, 2019 totaled $102.2 million, net of accumulated depreciation,
as shown in the table above. This represented an overall increase in the District’s capital assets for the
current fiscal year of $12.5 million. The District recorded $2.6 million in depreciation in the current
fiscal year.
Additional information about the District capital assets can be found in Note 4 of the financial
statements.
Debt Administration
As of June 30, 2019, the District had long-term obligations outstanding of $127.5 million, including the
unamortized issuance premium of $9.2 million for the 2017 General Obligation Bonds. Principal
payments on the 2017 General Obligation Bonds began in fiscal 2019.
The District funded $714K of the annual required contribution (ARC) in fiscal year 2019 for its OPEB
obligation.
The District made all scheduled repayments of existing debt. Each of the District’s debt issues is
discussed in detail in Note 4 of the financial statements. As of June 30, 2019, the District’s debt and other
long-term obligations were composed of the following:
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration, continued
Outstanding Long-term Debt
6/30/2019

2016 General Obligation (GO) Bond (Measure F1)

$

6/30/2018

116,110,000

$

125,000,000

Issued in 2017, due in 2016
Unamortized premium

9,206,770

9,547,761

798,426

1,215,209

76,659

76,659

-

17,576

-

-

Non-interest bearing loan from PG&E

352,346

-

Compensated absences

933,149

871,335

127,477,351

136,728,540

Capital Leases
State Supplemental Loan
Issued in 1986, 0% interest, no specified due date
Bank of the West Loan #91
Issued September 2013, 3.95%, due August 2018
Bank of the West Line of Credit
Authorized $1 million in 2008

Total Outstanding Long-term Debt

Request for Information
This Annual Financial Report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances. Questions about this report should be directed to Hayward
Area Recreation and Park District, Administrative Services Director at (510) 881-6707.
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Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expense for redevelopment
Land
Construction in progress
Building and improvements
Equipment and others
Less: accumulated depreciation

$

Total assets

14,075,264
113,491,736
554,611
104,565
16,168
25,880,109
15,107,212
124,696,606
5,372,459
(68,897,818)
230,400,912

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred refunding loss
Deferred employer OPEB contributions
Deferred employer pension contributions
Deferred outflows of resources - pension

1,529,540
714,148
2,393,336
2,092,585

Total deferred outflows of resources

6,729,609

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued interest payable
Deposits payable
Gift certificates outstanding
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year other than pension and OPEB
Due in more than one year other than pension and OPEB
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability

3,333,266
285,329
2,111,875
99,186
71,841
1,297,820
8,252,335
119,225,016
7,359,329
24,170,599

Total liabilities

166,206,596

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB
Deferred inflows of resources - pension

380,861
1,756,409

Total deferred inflows of resources

2,137,270

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Special puposes
Unrestricted

90,635,643
10,804,902
789,806
(33,443,696)

Total Net position

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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68,786,655

Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Net (Expense)
Revenue
and Changes
Program Revenues

Expenses

in Net Position

Capital Grants
and
Contributions

Charges for
Services

Operating
Grants and
Contribution

$

396,588
4,992,963
428,870
2,101,410
-

$

277,486
7,560
2,643
-

$

1,705,955
-

$ 7,919,831

$

287,689

$

1,705,955

Governmental
Activities

Governmental activities
District management
Recreation programs
Park programs
Golf courses
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities

$

3,311,702
12,722,928
15,036,683
4,317,587
4,986,655

$ 40,375,555

$

(2,915,114)
(5,746,524)
(14,600,253)
(2,213,534)
(4,986,655)
(30,462,080)

General Revenues:
Taxes and assessments
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
In -lieu fees
Other revenues

37,446,226
2,114,928
220,386
237,994
103,506

Total general revenues

40,123,040

Change in net position

9,660,960

Net position - beginning of year
Net position - end of year

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

22

59,125,695
$

68,786,655
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Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

General
Fund

Capital Project
Fund

Debt Service
Fund

$ 11,011,520
789,806
554,611
16,168
104,565

$

$

$ 12,476,670

$

Total
Governmental
Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investment
Restricted cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses for redevelopment
Inventory
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Deposits payable
Gift cerfiticates outstanding
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

953,665
285,329
99,186
71,841
1,297,820

2,052,868
99,785,253
-

100
12,916,677
-

$ 13,064,488
113,491,736
554,611
16,168
104,565

$ 101,838,121

$ 12,916,777

$ 127,231,568

$

$

$

2,379,601
-

-

3,333,266
285,329
99,186
71,841
1,297,820

2,707,841

2,379,601

-

5,087,442

104,565
16,168

-

-

104,565
16,168

789,806
110,880

99,458,520
-

12,916,777
-

99,458,520
12,916,777
789,806
110,880

8,747,410

-

-

8,747,410

9,768,829

99,458,520

12,916,777

122,144,126

$ 12,476,670

$ 101,838,121

$ 12,916,777

$ 127,231,568

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Inventory
Prepaids
Restricted:
Capital projects
Debt service
Special puposes
Assigned
Unassigned:
Cash flow reserve
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund
balances

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

25

Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Total Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

$ 122,144,126

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different
because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the Government-wide financial
statements, the cost of assets are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated useful lives of
the assets and reported as depreciation expense. The capital assets, net of depreciation, are:

102,158,568

In the Government-Wide Financial Statement certain differences between actuarial estimates and
actual results for pensions are deferred and amortized over a period of time, however, in the
governmental funds no transactions are recorded. In addition, employer contributions for
pensions and OPEB were recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds, however, in the
Government-Wide Financial Statement these contributions are deferred.
Deferred outflow of resources - OPEB
Deferred inflow of resources - OPEB
Deferred outflow of resources - pension
Deferred inflow of resources - pension

714,148
(380,861)
4,485,921
(1,756,409)

Interest payable on long-term debt did not require current financial resources. Therefore, interest
payable was not reported as a liability in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

(2,111,875)

In the Government-wide Financial Statements, accounting losses on debt refunding are
amortized over the life of the bonds. However this loss is not reported in governmental fund
activity.

1,529,540

Internal Service Funds were used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as
insurance, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Funds were
included in governmental activities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.

1,010,776

Long-term liabilities were not due and payable in the current period. Therefore, they were not
reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.
- Long-term debt - due within one year
- Long-term debt - due in more than one year
- Net OPEB liability
- Net pension liability
Net Position of Governmental Activities

(8,252,335)
(119,225,016)
(7,359,329)
(24,170,599)
$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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68,786,655

Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the year ended June 30, 2019
803--807--809

803--807--809

803--807--809

803--807--809

Capital Project
Fund

Debt Service
Fund

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

-

$ 11,830,966

$ 37,446,226

131,539
163,515
7,919,832
183,292
124,173
103,506

2,136,288
1,738,727
500,000
237,994
-

88,847
175,106
-

220,386
2,299,803
7,919,832
2,097,125
624,173
237,994
103,506

34,241,117

4,613,009

12,094,919

50,949,045

3,057,372
12,034,819
13,229,510
3,860,887

-

-

3,057,372
12,034,819
13,229,510
3,860,887

68,191
251,193

48,486
408,635
132,372
14,929,326

8,890,000
5,290,750
-

48,486
9,298,635
5,491,313
15,180,519

32,501,972

15,518,819

14,180,750

62,201,541

1,739,145

(10,905,810)

(2,085,831)

(11,252,496)

General
Fund
REVENUES:
Taxes and assessments
Aid from governmental agencies:
Homeowners' property tax relief
Grants
Rents, concessions, and fees
Interest
Donations
In-Lieu fees
Miscellaneous

$ 25,615,260

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
District management
Recreation programs
Parks
Golf courses
Debt service:
Other
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer in
Transfer out
Capital lease financing
Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balances

(659,734)
-

659,734
410,217

-

659,734
(659,734)
410,217

(659,734)

1,069,951

-

410,217

1,079,411

(9,835,859)

(2,085,831)

(10,842,279)

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year
End of year

$

8,689,418

109,294,379

15,002,608

132,986,405

9,768,829

$ 99,458,520

$ 12,916,777

$ 122,144,126

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2019
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

$ (10,842,279)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. In the statement of
activities, however, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the current period.
Expenditure for general capital assets
$ 15,185,323
Depreciation expenses
(2,604,328)

12,580,995

In the statement of activities, only the gain or (loss) on the sale of capital assets is
reported, whereas in the governmental funds, proceeds from the sales increases
financial resources. The differences between the proceeds and the loss on disposal of
capital assets.

(55,679)

Grant revenues that do not meet the revenue recognition criteria in the governmental
funds but are recognized as revenue in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

(930,333)

In governmental funds, OPEB costs are recognized when employer contributions are
made. In the statement of activities, OPEB costs are recognized on the accrual basis.

209,010

Current year employer pension contributions are recorded as expenditures in the
Governmental funds, however these amounts are reported as a deferred outflow of
resources in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.

2,393,336

Pension expense is recorded as incurred in the Government-Wide Statement of
Activities, however pension expense is not recognized in the governmental funds.

(2,864,484)

Interest expense on long-term debt was reported in the Government-Wide Statement
of Activities, but they did not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore,
interest expense was not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds from issuance of bonds and capital leases provided current financial
resources to Governmental Funds, but issuing debt increased long-term liabilities in
the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.
Proceeds from capital lease
Repayment of debt was an expenditure in Governmental Funds, but the repayment
reduced long-term liabilities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets.
Repayment of debt

553,144

(410,217)

(410,217)

9,298,635

In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amounts
earned during the fiscal year. In governmental funds, however, expenditures for
these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially the
amount paid).

(61,814)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as self-insurance to individual funds. The net revenues (expenses) of
the internal service funds are reported with governmental activities.

(209,354)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

$ 9,660,960

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2019
803--807--809

Internal
Services Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments

$

Total assets

1,010,776
1,010,776

Net Position
Unrestricted

1,010,776

Total net position

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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1,010,776

Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2019
803--807--809 803--807--809 803--807--809

803--807--809

Internal
Services Fund
Operating Expenses
Insurance premiums

$

Total operating expenses

575,293
575,293

Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Miscellaneous income

261,686
86,450

Total operating revenue

348,136

Operating income (loss)

(227,157)

Non-operating revenue
Investment income

17,803

Total non-operating revenues

17,803

Changes in Net Position

(209,354)

Total net position - beginning

1,220,130

Total net position - ending

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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1,010,776

Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2019
803-- 803--807--80803-- 803--807--809

Internal
Services Fund
Cash flows from operating activites:
Cash received from other funds
Cash received from others
Payments for services

$

Net cash used by operating activities

261,686
86,450
(575,293)
(227,157)

Cash flows from investing activites:
Interest received

17,803

Net cash provided by investing activities

17,803

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

(209,354)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

1,220,130

Cash and cash equivalent, end of year

$

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

(227,157)
$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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(227,157)
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FIDUCIARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPEB Trust Fund accounts for contributions made to the District's established IRC section 115
irrevocable trust fund with Benefit Trust Company and created as part of the District's OPEB (other
post employment benefits) funding strategy.
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Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2019
OPEB Trust
Fund
ASSETS
Current assets
Restricted cash and invesments

$

Total assets

7,934,769
7,934,769

NET POSITION
Held in trust for OPEB

7,934,769

Total net position

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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7,934,769

Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2019
OPEB Trust
Fund
ADDITIONS:
Employer contribution
Investment income

$

Total additions

714,148
444,648
1,158,796

DEDUCTIONS:
Retiree medical payments
Administration

517,278
40,214

Total deductions

557,492

Change in net position

601,304

NET POSITION:
Net position, beginning of period

7,333,465

Net position, end of period

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The basic financial statements of the Hayward Area Recreation and Park District (the District) have
been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United
States as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The District’s significant accounting policies are described below:
A. Description of Reporting Entity
Hayward Area Recreation and Park District (the District) was formed in 1944, to provide parks and
recreation for the incorporated and unincorporated areas under its jurisdiction.
The District is governed by an elected five-member Board of Directors, serving the City of Hayward and
the unincorporated Castro Valley, San Lorenzo, Ashland, Cherryland and Fairview districts. The District
is legally separate and fiscally independent, which means it can issue debt, set and modify budgets and
fees and sue or be sued. The financial statements of the District include only the financial activities of the
District. There are no separate or legal entities or component units included in the financial statements of
the District.
B. Basis of Presentation
The District’s basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the
acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards
followed by governmental entities in the United States of America.
Government-wide Financial Statements
The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the overall
District. Eliminations have been made to minimize the accounting of internal activities.
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with program, or function, and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Program revenues include a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the program,
b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational needs of a particular program,
and c) fees, grants and contributions that are restricted to financing the acquisition or construction of
capital assets. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general revenues.
Fund Financial Statements:
Fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds. Separate statements for each
fund category, governmental and proprietary, are presented. The emphasis of fund financial
statements is on major individual governmental funds, each of which is displayed in a separate column.
All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as non- major funds.
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Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
B. Basis of Presentation, Continued
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as investment earnings,
result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements
GASB Statement No. 34 defines major funds and requires that the District’s major governmental funds be
identified and presented separately in the fund financial statements. All other funds, called nonmajor
funds, are combined and reported in a single column regardless of their fund type.
Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets plus deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
plus deferred inflows of resources, revenues or expenditures/expenses equal to ten percent of their fund
type total and five percent of the grand total. The General Fund is always a major fund. The District may
also select other funds it believes should be presented as major funds.
The District reports the following major governmental funds in the accompanying financial statements:
General Fund – This fund is used for all the general revenues of the District not specifically levied or
collected for other District’s funds and the related expenditures. The general fund accounts for all
financial resources of a governmental unit which are not accounted for in another fund.
Capital Projects Fund – This fund is used to account for financial resources of the District to be used
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.
Debt Service Fund – This fund is used to account for financial resources of the District to be used for,
and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs.
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
The District reports the following proprietary fund:
Internal Service Fund – This fund is used to account for the financing of goods or services provided
by one department to other departments of the District for insurance costs on a cost reimbursement
basis.
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements
Fiduciary fund financial statements consist of a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. The fiduciary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting.
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Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
B. Basis of Presentation, Continued
The District reports the following fiduciary fund:
OPEB Trust Fund - This newly created fund accounts for funds held by the Public Agency Retirement
Services (PARS) 115 Trust for other postemployment benefits (OPEB).
C. Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts
and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of measurement made,
regardless of the measurement focus applied.
Government –wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements:
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flow
takes place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange include property taxes, special assessments, grants and
donations. On the accrual basis, revenues from taxes are recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes
are levied or assessed. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year
in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
Certain indirect costs are included in program expenses reported for individual functions and activities.
The District may fund programs with a combination of cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block
grants, and general revenues. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net position may be available to
finance program expenditures. The District’s policy is to first apply unrestricted grant resources to such
programs, followed by general revenues, if necessary.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements:
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities
are included on the balance sheets. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available if received during the current period or within 90 days
after year end to pay liabilities of the current period.
Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, certain other intergovernmental revenues,
certain charges for services and interest revenue. Charges for services are not susceptible to accrual
because they are not measurable until received in cash. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting
period in which the related fund liability is incurred.
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Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
D. Property Tax Levy, Collection and Maximum Rates
The State of California Constitution Article XIII (A), provides that the combined maximum property tax
rate on any given property may not exceed one percent of its assessed value when an additional amount
for general obligation debt has been approved by voters. Assessed value is calculated at 100% of fair
value as defined by Article XIII(A), and may be adjusted by no more than two percent per year unless the
property is sold or transferred. The State Legislature has determined the method of distribution of
receipts from a one percent tax levy among the counties, cities, school districts, and other districts.
Alameda County assesses properties, bills for and collects property taxes and special assessments as
follows:
Secured
Valuation dated
Lien/levy dates
Due dates
Delinquent as of

January 1
January 1
50% on November 1
50% on February 1
December 10 (November Due Date
April 10 (February Due Date)

Unsecured
January 1
January 1
July 1
August 31

E. Cash and Investments
The District pools cash for the purpose of increasing income through investment activities. All
investments are carried at fair value. Interest income on investments is allocated to certain funds
based on the source of the investments in the fund and based on legal requirements. Cash in County
Treasury is used in preparing the proprietary fund’s statement of cash flows. The District considers all
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents are combined with investments and displayed as cash and investments.
F. Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid investment
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
G. Interfund Transactions
Amounts may be transferred from one fund to another by the District. These interfund transactions
occur for the reasons described below and are accounted for as follows:
Quasi-External Transactions – Transactions for services rendered or facilities provided. These
transactions are recorded as revenues in the receiving fund and expenditures in the disbursing fund.
Reimbursements – Transactions to reimburse a fund for specific expenditures incurred for the benefit of
another fund. These transactions are recorded as expenditures in the disbursing fund and serve as a
reduction of expenditures in the receiving fund.
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Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
G. Interfund Transactions, Continued
Transfers – Transactions to allocate resources from one fund to another fund. These transactions are
recorded as other financing sources (uses).
H. Inventory
Inventory is valued at cost and is determined on a first-in/first-out basis. Inventory consists of
merchandise at the Skywest Golf Course, Mission Hills of Hayward Golf Course, Mission Hills of
Hayward Driving Range, Hayward Shoreline Interpretive Center, Swim Centers, Kennedy Park
Concessions, Douglas Morrisson Theater and Adobe Art Center.
I. Capital Assets
All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
contributed. With the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the District has recorded all its capital
assets, which include land, building and improvements, and equipment and others, e.g. computer
software. The District has adopted a policy of capitalizing all capital asset acquisitions in excess of $5,000.
GASB Statement No. 34 requires that all capital assets with limited useful lives be depreciated over their
estimated useful lives. The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably
among all users over the life of these assets. Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method
which means the cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to
expense each fiscal year until the asset is fully depreciated. The District has assigned the useful lives listed
below to capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements
Equipment and others

40 years
40 years
5-10 years

J. Long Term Debt
Government-wide Financial Statements – Long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond
premiums/discounts and deferred amounts on refunding are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight line method. Bond payable is reported net of the unamortized
premium/discount. Issuance costs are expensed as incurred.
Fund Financial Statements – In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
the debt issued, premiums or discounts are reported as other financing sources/used, whereas, issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.
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Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
K. Accrued Vacation Payable
Accumulated vacation benefits are recognized as a liability of the District. At June 30, 2019, the total
accrued vacation subject to redemption amounted to $933,149.
L. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position (balance sheet) will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense or expenditure) until then.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position (balance sheet) will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until then.
M. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the
Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Valuation Date June 30, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2018
Measurement Period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
N. Other Post Employment benefit (OPEB)
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Authority’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when
currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability and
asset information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:
Valuation Date June 30, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2018
Measurement Period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
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Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
O. Net Position
Government-wide Financial Statements
In the Government-wide Financial Statements, net position is classified in the following categories:
Net Investment in Capital Assets – This amount consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and reduced by outstanding debt, that is attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of the
assets.
Restricted – This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of governments.
Unrestricted – This amount is the net position balance that does not meet the definition of “net investment
in capital assets” or “restricted net position” as defined above.
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are
available, the District’s policy is to apply restricted net position first.
P. Fund Balances
In February 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement 54, Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB 54). The new classifications of fund
balances are listed below:
Nonspendable Fund Balances - Non-spendable represents balances set aside to indicate items that do not
represent available, spendable resources even though they are a component of assets. Fund balances
required to be maintained intact, such as Permanent Funds, and assets not expected to be converted to
cash, such as prepaids, notes receivable, and land held for resale are included. However, if proceeds
realized from the sale or collection of nonspendable assets are restricted, committed, or assigned, then
Nonspendable amounts are required to be presented as a component of the applicable category.
Restricted Fund Balances - Restricted fund balances have external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, or enabling legislation which requires the resources to be used
only for a specific purpose. Encumbrances and nonspendable amounts subject to restrictions are included
with spendable resources.
Committed Fund Balances - Committed fund balances have constraints imposed by resolution of the
District Board which may be altered only by resolution of the Board. Encumbrances and nonspendable
amounts subject to Board commitments are included with spendable resources.
Assigned Fund Balances - Assigned fund balances are amounts constrained by the District’s intent to be
used for a specific purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by the District
Board or its designee and may be changed at the discretion of the District Board or its designee. This
category includes encumbrances and nonspendable balances, when it is the District’s intent to use

44

Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
P. Fund Balances, Continued
Proceeds or collections for a specific purpose. The District Board is the only entity that has authority to
make assignments of fund balance. The District Board has not delegated the authority to make
assignments of fund balance.
Unassigned Fund Balance - Unassigned fund balance represents residual amounts that have not been
restricted, committed, or assigned. This includes the residual general fund balance and residual fund
deficits, if any, of other governmental funds.
Hierarchy of Expenditures to Classify Fund Balance Amounts
For expenditures made in any governmental fund, the restricted amounts will be reduced first, followed
by committed amounts, assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts.
Fund Balance Reserves Policy
On March 13, 2017, the Board adopted Resolution R-1617-63, which rescinded the prior Policy 3000 –
Contingent Reserves Policy and established Policy 9800 – Reserves Policy. The policy established specific
reserve types and target amounts. The following chart illustrates the targets as outlined in the policy and
the current position of the reserves based on available resources as of June 30, 2019:
Reserves Policy
Target Balances
1. Cash Flow Reserve
2. Operating Reserve
3. Liability Reserve
4. Capital Replacement Reserve
Subtotal, reserves

6/30/19 Balances

(Under) Over

10,000,000
7,500,000
1,000,000
$1M/year

8,747,410
1,010,776
-

(1,252,590)
(7,500,000)
10,776
N/A

18,500,000

9,758,186

(8,741,814)

Notes
Held in General Fund, unassigned
Tier 2 yet to be funded
Held in Insurance Fund

Q. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America as prescribed by the GASB and the AICPA requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenditures/ expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
R. New Accounting Pronouncements
In 2019, the District adopted new accounting standards in order to conform to the following
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements:
 GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations – The objective of this statement is to
provide financial statement users with information about asset retirement obligations (AROs) that
were not addressed in GASB standards by establishing uniform accounting and financial reporting
requirements for these obligations. The requirements of this statement did not apply to the District
for the current fiscal year.
 GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct
Placements – The objective of this statement is to improve consistency in the information that is
disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings
and direct placements, and to provide financial statement users with additional essential
information about debt. The requirements of this statement did not apply to the District for the
current fiscal year.
2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
The District maintains cash and investments, which includes cash balances with Alameda County,
financial institutions and authorized investments for all funds, except funds required to be held by fiscal
agents under the provision of bond indentures.
The following is a summary of cash and investments at June 30, 2019:
Statement of Net Position
GovernmentWide
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments

Total

$

14,075,264
113,491,736
-

$

7,934,769

$

14,075,264
113,491,736
7,934,769

$

127,567,000

$

7,934,769

$

135,501,769

OPEB trust investment pool
Total

Fiduciary
Fund
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, CONTINUED
At June 30, 2019, the District’s cash and investments consisted of the following:
Deposits:
Cash on hand
Deposits with banks

$

Total deposits

12,175
11,576,953
11,589,128

Investments:
Certificates of deposits
County Investment Pool

999,804
114,978,068

Total investments

115,977,872

Total District's cash and investment

127,567,000

Held in Trust for OPEB

7,934,769

Total cash and investments

$

135,501,769

A. Deposits
Custodial Credit Risk
The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the
District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to
custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the government unit). The fair value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public
agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure the District’s deposits by pledging
first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. This collateral is
held by the institution but is considered to be held in the District’s name and places the District ahead of
general creditors of the institution. The District has waived collateral requirements for the portion of
deposits covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
B. Cash in County Treasury
The Department maintains its available cash in Alameda County Treasury. The County pools these funds
with those of other agencies and invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at cost, which
approximates the market value. All the funds in the pool share any investments losses proportionately.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, CONTINUED
B. Cash in County Treasury, Continued
Funds with the County Treasurer are invested pursuant to investment policy established by the
Treasurer and approved by the Board of Supervisors. The objectives of the policy are, in order of
priority, preservation of capital, liquidity and yield. The policy addresses the soundness of financial
institutions in which the County deposits funds, the types of investment instruments and the percentage
of the portfolio which may be invested in certain instruments, as permitted by Section 53600 feet seq. of
the Government Code of the State of California. Authorized instruments in which the Treasurer can
invest include debts issued by the County, US Treasury securities, banker’s acceptances, federal, state
and local government securities, commercial paper, medium-term corporate notes, negotiable
certificates of deposit, local agency investment fund, money market funds, mutual funds, and
mortgage-backed securities.
Information regarding the characteristics of the entire investment pool can be found in the County's June
30, 2019 comprehensive annual financial report. A copy of that report may be obtained by contacting
the County's Auditor-Controller Agency, 1221 Oak Street, Room 220, Oakland, CA 94612. As of June
30, 2019, the District’s share of the County's cash and investment pool totaled $114,978,068
C. Investments
Under the provisions of the District's investment policy, and in accordance with California
Government Code, the following investments are authorized:







Government securities with the full faith and credit of the federal government.
Federal instrumentalities which do not carry the federal guarantee but which are
guaranteed or supported by the US Treasury
Bank certificates of deposits
Money Market funds
Commercial Paper
California Local Agency Investment funds

Bond proceeds are invested in compliance with the individual fiscal agent agreements associated with
each issue.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, CONTINUED
D. Risk Disclosures
Interest Risk: Interest rate risk is the market value fluctuation due to overall changes in the interest rates. It
is mitigated by limiting the average maturity of the District’s portfolio not to exceed five years. Because of
the economic conditions, the District holds investments with maturity dates five years from the purchase
date but certain investments are callable with interest step-up increases. At June 30, 2019, the District had
the following investment maturities.
Investment Maturities
Investment Type
Certificates of Deposit

Fair Value
$

999,804

1 year or less
$

202,434

1-2 years
$

-

2-3 years
$

391,888

3-5 years
$

405,482

External Pool:
County Investment Pool
Totals

114,978,068

114,978,068

$ 115,977,872

$ 115,180,502

$

-

$

391,888

$

405,482

Credit Risk - This is the risk of loss due to failure of the issuer of a security, which is mitigated by
requiring investment in high grade securities. At June 30, 2019, the District had the following
investments credit risk ratings.

Certificates of Deposits

Credit Quality Ratings
Moody's
S&P
Aa1
AA+

County Investment pool

not rated

not rated

Custodial Credit Risk - This risk is that, in the event of the failure of the counter party, the District will not
be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. All securities are held by third-party custodian, UBS financial services, and Bank of New
York. The securities are held in the name of the District.
E. Fair Value Measurement
The District acquires its investments with the expectation of future income or profit and is subject to GASB
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. Investments (except for money market
accounts, time deposits, and commercial paper) are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring
fair value measurements are those that GASB Statements require or permit in the statement of net position
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on the valuation
inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs.
Investments included in County’s investment pool and restricted cash and investments including money
market accounts and guaranteed investment contracts are not subject to fair value measurement.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, CONTINUED
F. Investments Held in Trust for Other Postemployment Benefits
The District has an irrevocable Section 115 OPEB Trust with Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS)
for the future payment of retiree medical premiums (other postemployment benefits). As of June 30, 2019,
the trust had a balance of $7,934,769. PARS’ policy for allocation of invested assets is established as
follows:
Target
Allocation

Asset Class
Global Equity
Global Fixed Income
Liquidity

50.00%
45.00%
5.00%

Total

100%

At June 30, 2019, PARS held no investments in any one organization that represented 5% or more of the
trust’s investments.
Rate of return: For the year ended June 30, 2019, the annual money-weighted rate of return on
investments, net of investment expenses, was 6.23%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses
investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually
invested.
3. INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Transfers are indicative of payments for capital projects operation or debt services payments. Interfund
transfers during the year ended June 30, 2019, were as follows:
Transfers In
Major Fund
Transfers Out

Capital Projects
Fund

Total

Major Funds:
General Fund

$

659,734

$

659,734

Total

$

659,734

$

659,734

50

Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2019

4. CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows:
Balance at
July 1, 2018
Non Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land
Construction in progress

$

Total Non Depreciable Assets

25,685,896
3,165,234

Addition
$

194,213
14,327,396

28,851,130

14,521,609

Depreciable Capital Assets:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and others

121,900,470
5,402,531

410,718
252,996

Total depreciable assets

127,303,002

663,714

Deletion
$

Balance at
June 30, 2019

Reclassification
-

$

-

(2,385,418)

$

25,880,109
15,107,212

(2,385,418)

40,987,321

(283,068)

2,385,418

124,696,606
5,372,459

(283,068)

2,385,418

130,069,065

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total Depreciable Capital Assets, net
Total Capital Assets, net

$

(62,859,109)

(2,078,415)

(3,661,770)

(525,913)

227,388

(66,520,879)

(2,604,328)

227,388

60,782,123

(1,940,614)

(55,680)

89,633,253

$

12,580,995

-

$

(55,680)

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:
Governmental activities:
District management
Golf courses
Parks
Recreation programs
Total depreciation expense
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$

222,674
495,724
1,489,509
396,421

$

2,604,328

-

(64,937,524)
(3,960,295)
-

(68,897,819)

2,385,418
$

-

61,171,246
$

102,158,568
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5. LONG-TERM DEBT
A. Changes in Long-Term Debt
The following is a summary of long-term liability activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019:
Balance
June 30, 2018
State Supplemental Loan
2016 General Obligation Bonds, Series A
Unamortized Premium
Capital lease
Loan payable - Bank of the West
PG&E LED Financing
Compensated absences

$

Total long-term liabilities

$ 136,728,541

Additions

76,659
125,000,000
9,547,761
1,215,210
17,576
871,335

Deletions

410,217
61,814
$

472,031

$

Balance
June 30, 2019

8,890,000
340,991
416,784
17,576
57,871
-

$

9,723,222

$ 127,477,350

Due Within
One Year

76,659
116,110,000
9,206,770
798,426
352,346
933,149

7,600,000
222,674
57,871
371,790
$

8,252,335

B. The Detail of Long-Term Debt
I.

State Supplemental Loan

On April 16, 1986, the State of California issued a loan in the amount of $275,000 with an interest rate of
0% to the District. The terms of the agreement were that the County of Alameda was to collect from the
District on behalf of the State of California. At June 30, 2019, $76,659 remains outstanding.
II. 2016 General Obligation Bonds, Series A
On May 11, 2017, the District issued the Election of 2016 General Obligation bonds, Series A (Measure
F1 Bonds) in the amount of $125,000,000. The Bonds were issued to (i) finance the repair, upgrading,
acquisition, and construction of District sites and facilities; (ii) defease all or a portion of the District’s
outstanding Certificates of Participation, Series 2014; (iii) pay capitalized interest on a portion of the
Bonds; and (iv) pay the costs of issuing the Bonds. The Bonds were issued at a premium of $9,888,752
which will be amortized over the life of the Bonds.
The Measure F1 Bonds mature annually starting August 1, 2018 through 2046. The interest on the
bonds is payable semiannually on each February 1 and August 1, with coupon rates ranging from
3.00% to 5.00%. The bonds are payable solely from and secured by ad valorem property tax revenues.
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5. LONG-TERM DEBT, CONTINUED
B. The Details of Long-Term Debt, Continued
The future principal and interest payments on the debt are as follows:
Year Ending
June 30,

Principal

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2044
2045-2047

$

Total

$

Interest

7,600,000
6,030,000
365,000
525,000
695,000
6,540,000
13,115,000
21,480,000
33,005,000
26,755,000
116,110,000

$

$

Total

4,878,500
4,537,750
4,377,875
4,355,625
4,325,125
20,831,250
18,518,650
15,070,569
9,156,556
1,655,900
87,707,800

$

12,478,500
10,567,750
4,742,875
4,880,625
5,020,125
27,371,250
31,633,650
36,550,569
42,161,556
28,410,900

$

203,817,800

III. Capital Leases
From time to time, the District enters into agreements to lease equipment. Such agreements are, in
substance, purchases (capital leases) and are reported as capital lease obligations.
Future minimum lease payments on these agreements are as follows:
Year ended June 30,

Amount

2020
2021
2022
2023
Less: amount representing interest and taxes
Present value of net minimum lease payments

$

358,483
349,013
220,804
134,805
1,063,104
264,678
798,426

IV. PG&E LED Light Financing
On June 8, 2018, the District entered into a loan agreement with PG&E for a total installation project
cost of energy efficient LED lights on Mission Hills and Alden Oliver Park, free of interest. The
loan is payable on a monthly equal installments of $57,871 starting from July 2018 up to June 2027.
As of June 30, 2019, the outstanding balance was $352,346.

53

Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2019

5. LONG-TERM DEBT, CONTINUED
B. The Details of Long-Term Debt, Continued
The future remaining debt service payments under the new loan are as follows:
Year ended June 30,
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025-2027
Total

Amount

$

57,871
57,871
57,871
57,871
57,871
62,991
352,346

V. Line of Credit
The district has an unsecured line of credit of $1,000,000 with Bank of the West bearing a variable rate of
interest. The rate of interest charged is Bank of the West Prime rate. As of June 30, 2019, the balance
outstanding was zero.
6. PENSION PLAN
Plan Description
All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District’s
Miscellaneous Plans, agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for its participating member employers. Benefit provisions under the Plans are
established by State statute and Local Government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports
that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and
membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website. Audited financial statements of
CalPERS can be obtained from its website https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-publications. The
District relies upon actuarial and investment data provided by CalPERS for inclusion and analysis in
this report.
Benefits Provided
CalPERS provide service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years
of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service
are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty
disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living
adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.
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6. PENSION PLAN, CONTINUED
Benefits Provided, Continued
The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2019, are summarized as follows:
Miscellaneous
Hire Date
Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit Payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a % if eligible compensation
Final compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates
Required unfunded liability payment

Prior to 1/1/2013
2.5% @55
5 years
Monthly for life
50-55
2.0% to 2.5%
12 months
8.00%
9.443%

On or after 1/1/2013
2.0% @ 60
2.0% @ 62
5 years
5 years
Monthly for life
Monthly for life
50-63
52-67
1.092% to 2.418%
1.0% to 2.5%
36 months
36 months
7.00%
6.25%
9.443%
9.443%
$1,563,828

Employees Covered – At June 30, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms for
each Plan:
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees
Total

156
52
125
333

Contribution
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall
be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions are determined
annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated
amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
For the measurement period ended June 30, 2018, the District's contributions to the Plan was $2,080,642.
Net Pension Liability
The District’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of
June 30, 2018, using an annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2018
using standard update procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to
determine the net pension liability is shown on the following page.
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6. PENSION PLAN, CONTINUED
Net Pension Liability, Continued
Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuations were
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:
Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return
(2)

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2018
Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
7.15%
2.50%
Varies by Entry Age and Service
(1)

Mortality
Post Retirement Benefit Increase

7.15%
Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds
Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power Protection
Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.75% thereafter

(1)

Net of pension plan administrative expenses.

(2)

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data. The table includes 20 years

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of a
January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 2011. Further details of the Experience
Study can found on the CalPERS website.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. To determine whether
the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of the discount rate for each plan, CalPERS
stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the
actuarially assumed discount rate. The tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the
current 7.15 percent discount rate is appropriate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is
not deemed necessary. The long-term expected discount rate of 7.15 percent is applied to all plans in
the Public Employees’ Retirement Fund (PERF). The cash flows used in the testing were developed
assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and as
scheduled in all future years. The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB
Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained at CalPERS website under the GASB 68 section.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a buildingblock method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
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6. PENSION PLAN, CONTINUED
Net Pension Liability, Continued
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, staff took into account both short-term and longterm market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund (PERF) cash flows. Taking into
account historical returns of all the Public Employees Retirement Funds’ asset classes (which includes
the agent plan and two cost-sharing plans or PERF A, B, and C funds), expected compound (geometric)
returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a
building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the
present value of benefits was calculated for each PERF fund. The expected rate of return was set by
calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for
cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of
return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the
nearest one quarter of one percent.
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.
New
Strategic
Asset Class
Global Equity
Global Fixed Income
Inflation Sensitive
Private Equity
Real Estate
Liquidity
Total

Allocation
50.00%
28.00%
0.00%
8.00%
13.00%
1.00%
100%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.
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Real Return
Years 1 - 10

(a)

4.80%
1.00%
77.00%
6.30%
3.75%
0.00%

Real Return
(b)

Years 11+

5.98%
2.62%
1.81%
7.23%
4.93%
-0.92%
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6. PENSION PLAN, CONTINUED
Change in Net Pension Liability
The change in the Net Pension Liability for each Plan follows:
Increase (Decrease)

Miscellaneous Plan
Total Pension
Liability
Balance at June 30, 2017

$

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

79,782,179

$

Net Pension
Liability/(Asset)

53,906,891

$

25,875,288

Changes in the year:
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability

1,539,005
5,494,622

Differences between actual and expected
experience
Changes in assumptions
Plan to Plan Resource Movement
Contribution - employer
Contribution - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments , including refunds of
employee contributions
Administrative expenses
Other miscellaneous Income/(Expense)
Net changes
Balance at June 30, 2018

$

-

1,539,005
5,494,622

(1,074,289)
(577,098)
-

(132)
2,080,642
665,533
4,584,409

(1,074,289)
(577,098)
132
(2,080,642)
(665,533)
(4,584,409)

(4,104,826)
1,277,414

(4,104,826)
(84,002)
(159,521)
2,982,103

84,002
159,521
(1,704,689)

81,059,593

$

56,888,994

$

24,170,599

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate – The following
presents the net pension liability of the District for each Plan, calculated using the discount rate for
each Plan, as well as what the District’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:
Miscellaneous
1% Decrease
Net Pension Liability

$

6.15%
34,165,828

Current Discount Rate
Net Pension Liability

$

7.15%
24,170,599

1% Increase
Net Pension Liability

$

8.15%
15,798,808

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.
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6. PENSION PLAN, CONTINUED
Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized pension expense of $2,864,484. At June 30,
2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on plan
investments
Total

Deferred Outflows of
Resources
$
2,393,336
29,384
1,925,981

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$
(1,339,616)
(416,793)

137,220

-

$

4,485,921

$

(1,756,409)

$2,393,336 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,
2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Measurement Period
Ending June 30:

Deferred
Outflows/(Inflows)
of Resources

2019
2020
2021
2022

$

1,062,108
258,786
(826,848)
(157,870)

Total

$

336,176

Payable to Pension Plan
As of June 30, 2019, the District reported a payable of $77,739 of contributions to the pension plan
required for the year ended June 30, 2019.
7. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
In 2007, the Hayward Area Recreation and Park District implemented a defined contribution program
(PEHP) for all future new hires and those existing employees who had decided to take the one-time
offered plan (see the note of PEHP for details).
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7. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, CONTINUED
I. Other Postemployment Medical Benefit Plan (OPEB Plan)
The District has established another Other Postemployment Medical Benefit plan (OPEB Plan) and
participates in an agent multiple-employer defined benefit retiree healthcare plan. It is provided to a
closed group of retirees and those employees hired before July 1, 2007 who opted not to take the PEHP
offer and decided to meet and satisfy the OPEB plan eligibility requirements.
A. Plan Description
The OPEB plan covers payment for the appropriate type and hospitalization plan for single (retiree)
or two-party (retiree and spouse) coverage.
1) If the employee retires after working at the District for at least eleven years and begins

receiving retirement pay from PERS upon leaving the District, the District will pay four
months’ coverage for every full year’s service after the ten years’ service; e.g. four months’
coverage for eleven full years of service, eight months’ coverage for twelve years of service,
etc.

2) If the employee retires after working at the District for at least twenty years of full-time

service, the District will pay the coverage for the life of the retiree and the spouse, until the
death of the retiree.

3) Coverage will be based on the Kaiser rate. Retirees pay the difference if the premium of their

plan exceeds the Kaiser plan.

4) When retiree and/or spouse become eligible for Medicare (age 65), the District will pay only

the premium charged for parts A & B Medicare coverage.

5) If the retiree moves out of the service area of his/her HMO plan, he/she has the option to

either change to the District’s PPO plan and pay the excess or purchase his/her own
insurance plan and get reimbursed for the cost of the premium not to exceed the District’s
group rate.

6) Whether or not eligible for (1) or (2) above, all retirees and their spouses may elect to continue

coverage under the District’s group medical/hospitalization/dental plans at their own
expense after eligibility for District’s payment of premiums has been exhausted.

B. Employees Covered
Inactive employees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Active employees
Total

49
54
103
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7. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, CONTINUED
I. Other Postemployment Medical Benefit Plan (OPEB Plan), Continued
C. Contributions
The District set up an OPEB Trust with the Public Agencies Retirement Service (PARS) in 2010 for the
funding of the OPEB cost. The Trust is structured as a multiple-employer trust in accordance with
Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code. The Trust was prepared as an irrevocable exclusive benefit
trust to fund retiree health care benefits.
For the measurement period ended June 30, 2018, the District contributed $725,417.
D. Net OPEB Liability
The District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2017.
Actuarial Assumptions—the total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:
Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Contribution Policy
Projected Salary Increase
Investment Rate of Return
Mortality
Healthcare Trend

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2018
Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
6.00%
2.26%
Contributes full ADC
3.25%
6.00%
CalPERS 2014 Experience Study
Non-Medicare - 7.8% for 2019, decreasing to an
ultimate rate of 5.0% in 2030 and later years
Medicare - 5.5% for 2020, decreasing to an ultimate
rate of 5.0% in 2030 and later years

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building- block
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the table below.

Asset Class
Public Equity
Fixed Income
REITS
Cash

Target

Expected Real

Allocation*

Rate of Return

48.00%
45.00%
2.00%
5.00%
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7. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, CONTINUED
I. Other Postemployment Medical Benefit Plan (OPEB Plan), Continued
E. Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.00 percent. This single discount rate was
based on the long-term expected real rate of return of assets by asset class, the investment allocation, and
the time horizon of cash flows of the trust.
F. Changes in Net OPEB Liability
The changes in the net OPEB liability for the OPEB Plan are as follows:
Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB
Liability
Balance at June 30, 2017

$

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

14,207,047

$

Net OPEB
Liability/(Asset)

6,562,603

$

7,644,444

Changes in the year:
Service cost
Interest
Differences between actual and expected
experience
Contribution - employer
Net investment income
Administrative expenses
Benefit payments , including refunds of
employee contributions
Net changes
Balance at June 30, 2018

$

198,629
850,123

-

(82,036)
-

725,417
543,113
(16,699)

198,629
850,123
(82,036)
(725,417)
(543,113)
16,699

(480,923)
485,793

(480,923)
770,908

(285,115)

14,692,840

$

7,333,511

$

7,359,329

G. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Discount if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement
period ended June 30, 2018:
Current
Discount
6%

1% Decrease
5%
Net OPEB Liability

$

5,704,244
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7,359,329
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7%
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9,357,365
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7. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, CONTINUED
I. Other Postemployment Medical Benefit Plan (OPEB Plan), Continued
H. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Discount if it were calculated using health care cost
trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for
measurement period ended June 30, 2018:
Current Healthcare
Trend Rate
7.8%-5.0%

1% Decrease
6.8%-4.0%
Net OPEB Liability

$

9,516,408

$

1% Increase
8.8%-6.0%

7,359,329

$

5,589,270

I. Recognition of Deferred Outflow and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in
OPEB expense systematically over time. Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the
gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. The recognition period
differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:
Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on OPEB plan
investments

5 years straight - line amortization

All other amounts

Expected average remaining service
lifetime (EARSL) of all members
(3.8 years at June 30, 2018)

J. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of Resources Related to OPEB
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the Discount recognized OPEB expense of $524,440. For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2019, the Discount reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:
Contributions to OPEB subsequent to
measurement date
Differences between expected and actual
experience in the measurement of the TPL

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

$

$

714,148

Net differences between projected and actual
earnings of OPEB plan investments
Total

$

63

714,148

-

-

(145,165)

-

(235,696)
$

(380,861)
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7. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, CONTINUED
I. Other Postemployment Medical Benefit Plan (OPEB Plan), Continued
The $714,148 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the June 30,
2020 measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability during the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized as expense as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30:
2020
2021
2022
2022
Total

$

$

(140,521)
(126,038)
(85,779)
(28,523)
(380,861)

II. Postemployment Healthcare Plan (PEHP)
A. Plan Description: PEHP is a tax-free defined contribution health reimbursement arrangement

(HRA) which allows employers to set aside money for the payment of medical expenses that
retirees will incur after they sever employment.
The contributions, accumulations and
reimbursements are all tax exempt.
The District’s employees with a hire date of July 1, 2007 or before were provided with a onetime option to participate in the PEHP plan or continue to be eligible for the OPEB plan upon
retirement from the District. New hires employed by HARD after July 1, 2007 are
automatically enrolled in PEHP. PEHP helps reduce the future impact of OPEB on unfunded
liabilities of the District.
As of June 30, 2019, there were eighty four (84) employees
enrolled in the PEHP plan.
b. PEHP can reimburse the cost of medical insurance premiums and may also reimburse outof- pocket cost of medical expenses such as prescription drugs, co-pays and eyeglasses.
Reimbursements made to retirees from their PEHP accounts are free from federal income
and FICA taxes.
a.

B. Funding Policy: PEHP has no annual limit on contributions.

The District contributes 2.5% of
participating employees’ base salaries to Nationwide Retirement Solutions each month. For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the District had funded $163,414 to the plan.

C. Plan Value: The balance in the District’s quarterly statement was $940,828 as of June 30, 2019. Plan

participants can monitor and make selections between a list of funds available for the amount
allocation. Participants also receive quarterly statement of their account allocations and balances.
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8. DEFERRED COMPENSATION
Employees may participate in a deferred compensation program (457) at their option. These plans are
maintained by a third party, and the related financial information is not included in these financial
statements. The District did not contribute to this plan in 2018.
9. PUBLIC AGENCY RETIREMENT SERVICES ALTERNATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM 457 PLAN
District’s part-time, seasonal, and temporary employees who are not members of the existing
retirement plan were given the one-time choice to stay with the Social Security plan or to join the
newly created alternate plan called the Public Agency Retirement Services Alternate Retirement System
457 plan (PARS ARS 457) in August 2013. For eligible employees hired on and after Jan. 2014, they are
enrolled in the PARS ARS 457 automatically.
Each pay period, the participant contributes 6.2% of his/her pre-tax wages and the District
contributes 1.3% of the employee’s pre-tax salary to the plan. During 2019 the District contributed
$59,145 to the plan. The balance in the plan was $1,351,385 as of June 30, 2019. There were 441
employees enrolled in the plan as of June 30, 2019.
10. RISK MANAGEMENT
A. California Association for Park and Recreation Insurance
The District is self-insured for comprehensive liability coverage as a member of the California
Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity (CAPRI). CAPRI is a public agency risk pool created
pursuant to a joint powers agreement between the numerous member Districts. CAPRI manages on
pool for all member agencies. Each member pays an annual premium to the system based on numerous
factors including the number of personnel, types and values of assets held, and an experience factor.
C APRI reinsures through a commercial carrier for claims in excess of $1,000,000 for each insured event.
CAPRI is not a component entity of the District for purposes of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39.
Coverage provided under CAPRI is as follows:
Comprehensive general liability coverage with a $1,000,000 limit per occurrence for personal injury and
property damage to which the coverage applies. CAPRI also purchases an excess policy from CSAC
Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA) with limits of $24 million in excess of $1 million. There is no
deductible to the District.
All-risks property loss coverage including Boiler & Machinery coverage is subject to a $2,000 deductible
per occurrence payable by the District. All-risks property coverage has a limit of $1,000,000,000 per
occurrence shared by the membership. Boiler and Machinery has an excess limit of $100,000,000. Flood
and earthquake coverages have an annual aggregate limit of $10,000,000 and $5,000,000 respectively for
all the member districts. The deductible for all loss or damage arising from the risks of flood is $20,000
and earthquake is $50,000 per occurrence or 5% of the value of the building, contents, and/or structure
damaged, whichever is greater.
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10. RISK MANAGEMENT, CONTINUED
B. California Association for Park and Recreation Insurance, Continued
Public officials and employee liability coverage has a $25,000,000 annual aggregate limit per member
district because of a wrongful act which occurs during the coverage period for which the coverage
applies. There is a $20,000 deductible for any covered claim for wrongful termination payable by the
District. Workers' Compensation Coverage is with $350,000 in limits. There is no deductible for the
Workers' Compensation program.
11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY
A. Lease Agreement on the Skywest Golf Course
The District operates the Skywest Golf Course under a lease expiring on September 30, 2020 and pays the
City of Hayward rent based on a percentage of income from the Skywest Golf Course and Skywest
concessions.
Rent expense under this lease was $133,611 for the year ended June 30, 2019.
B. Lease agreement on the Mission Hills of Hayward Golf Course
The District has a lease agreement with the City of Hayward to lease the property on which the District
built the Mission Hills of Hayward Golf Course. The lease is for a period of 25 years, with the option of
two consecutive five year extensions. From July 1, 2002 through June 30, 2014, the rent paid by the
District was 55% of the net income. From July 1, 2014 through the remainder of the lease and options,
the rent to be paid by the District varies and is a combination of a fixed rent and a percentage of income.
For the year ended June 30, 2019, no rent payments have been made to the City of Hayward as
expenditures have exceeded revenues for the golf course.
12. LITIGATION
As of June 30, 2019, the District was not involved in any suits which in the opinion of the District’s
management would have a significant effect on the financial position of the District.
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13. EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF APPROPRIATIONS
The District had expenditures in excess of appropriations under the following:
Fund

Excess

General Fund:
Recreation

$

406,534

The expenditures in excess of appropriations in the Recreation Department were caused by payments to
hourly employees, as program needs exceeded original budget amounts. Personnel cost savings of
$570,961 in District Management was used to offset these overages.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On October 7, 2019 the district purchased property located at 20478 Mission Blvd. in the unincorporated
area of Hayward for $3,995,000 using bond proceeds. The property will be repurposed for community
use in accordance with the District’s mission. The project is referred to as the “Mission & Mattox
Property” and project costs have been appropriated as part of the Three-Year Capital Improvement
Plan.
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1. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING
A. Budgetary Procedures
The District’s budget and budgetary accounting are prepared on the cash basis. Only revenues
actually received and disbursements paid in cash are recorded. No revenues or expenditures are
accrued. The annual budget is adopted by a Board of Directors’ resolution and is presented in the
financial statements. A public hearing on the budget is held in July of each fiscal year. The budget
is thereafter approved by the Board of Directors. The General Manager is authorized to transfer
budgeted amounts between accounts within any department of any fund provided the approved
budget for salaries and benefit services and supplies, as well as equipment in each department is
not changed. All other transfers must be approved by the Board of Directors. Budgeted amounts
may be amended by the Board of Directors from time to time.

The District uses encumbrances accounting under which purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditures of monies are recorded to reserve the portion of the applicable
appropriation. Encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year end are reported as reservation of fund
balances since they do not constitute expenditures of liabilities. Unexpended appropriations lapse
at fiscal year end and must be re-appropriated in the following fiscal year.
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B. Budgetary Comparison Schedule, General Fund
Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES:
Taxes and assessments
Aids from governmental agencies:
Homeowners' property tax relief
Grants
Rents, concessions, and fees
Interest
Donations
Miscellaneous

$ 25,304,435

$ 25,603,141

$ 25,615,260

133,000
69,500
8,594,405
40,500
34,450

131,992
160,078
7,886,953
114,000
124,430
34,450

131,539
163,515
7,919,832
183,292
124,173
103,506

34,176,290

34,055,044

34,241,117

186,073

2,831,490
1,800,070

2,192,669
1,382,647

1,621,708
1,435,664

570,961
(53,017)

9,109,896
2,186,700

9,224,482
2,396,383

9,634,726
2,400,093

(410,244)
(3,710)

8,075,754
4,165,228

8,492,972
4,774,085

8,578,926
4,650,584

(85,954)
123,501

2,862,276
1,131,484
405,904
330,000

2,969,293
1,014,087
265,130
-

2,812,199
1,048,688
251,193
-

157,094
(34,601)
13,937
-

Total revenues

$

12,119
(453)
3,437
32,879
69,292
(257)
69,056

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
District management:
Personnel
Services and supplies
Recreation:
Personnel
Services and supplies
Parks:
Personnel
Services and supplies
Golf courses:
Personnel
Services and supplies
Capital outlay
Contingency
Debt Service:
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

14,456

44,665

68,191

32,913,258

32,756,413

32,501,972

277,967

(23,526)

1,263,032

1,298,631

1,739,145

440,514

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

(964,251)

(659,734)

(659,734)

-

(964,251)

(659,734)

(659,734)

-

$

298,781

$

638,897

1,079,411

FUND BALANCES:
8,689,418

Beginning of year

$ 9,768,829

End of year
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2. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLAN
A. Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios during the Measurement Period - Last 10 Years*
6/30/2019
Measurement date
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

6/30/2018

6/30/2018

6/30/2017

6/30/2016

6/30/2015

6/30/2017

6/30/2016

6/30/2015

6/30/2014

$ 1,428,168
5,287,437
176,297
-

$ 1,389,540
5,051,071
8,627
(1,147,247)

$ 1,379,317
4,823,218
-

Service Cost
Interest
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience
Changes of Assumptions
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee
Contributions
Net Change in Total Pension Liability

$ 1,539,005
5,494,622
(1,074,289)
(577,098)

$ 1,649,412
5,387,444
(1,226,965)
4,191,839

(4,104,826)
1,277,414

(3,557,700)
6,444,030

Total Pension Liability - Beginning
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)

79,782,179
$ 81,059,593

73,338,149
$ 79,782,179

70,006,633
$ 73,338,149

68,237,205
$ 70,006,633

65,205,162
$ 68,237,205

$ 2,080,642
665,533
4,584,409

$ 1,834,399
641,056
5,470,223

$ 1,765,227
676,243
272,815

$ 1,626,145
653,419
1,151,805

$ 1,387,417
615,339
7,621,987

(3,560,386)
3,331,516

(3,532,563)
1,769,428

(3,170,492)
3,032,043

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employee
Net Investment Income
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee
Contributions
Net Plan to Plan Resource Movement
Administrative Expenses
Other Miscellaneous Income/(Expense)
Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position

(4,104,826)
(132)
(84,002)
(159,521)
2,982,103

(3,557,700)
(73,219)
4,314,759

(3,560,386)
(30,758)
(876,859)

(3,532,563)
(56,794)
(157,988)

(3,170,492)
6,454,251

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)

$ 53,906,891
$ 56,888,994

49,592,132
$ 53,906,891

50,468,991
$ 49,592,132

50,626,979
$ 50,468,991

44,172,728
$ 50,626,979

Plan Net Position Liability/(Asset) - Ending (a) - (b)

$ 24,170,599

$ 25,875,288

$ 23,746,017

$ 19,537,642

$ 17,610,226

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability
Covered Payroll
Plan Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll

70.18%
$ 8,967,825

269.53%

73

67.57%
$ 8,459,137

305.89%

67.62%
$ 8,761,228

271.04%

72.09%
$ 8,407,183

232.39%

74.19%
$ 8,057,700

218.55%
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2. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLAN, Continued
B. SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS – Last 10 Years*

Contractually required contribution(actuarially
determined)
Contribution in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

$ 2,393,336

$ 2,080,642

$ 1,834,398

$ 1,765,227

$ 1,626,145

(2,393,336)

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

-

Covered payroll
Contributions as a percentage of covered
payroll

$ 8,772,259

(2,080,642)
$

27.28%

-

$ 8,967,825
23.20%

(1,834,398)
$

-

$ 8,459,137
21.69%

Notes to Schedule:
*- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only four years are shown.
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(1,765,227)
$

-

$ 8,761,228
20.15%

(1,626,145)
$

-

$ 8,407,183
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3. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN
A. Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios During the Measurement Period (1)
Measurement Period
Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost
Interest on the total OPEB liability
Differences between expected and actual experience
Benefit paymens, including refunds of employee contributions and implicit
subsidy
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefit paymens, including refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expense
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)
Net OPEB liability/(asset) - ending (a) - (b)

2017-18
$

$
$

$

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

(480,923)
485,793
14,207,047
14,692,840

$

$

190,989
823,713
(184,285)
(317,229)
513,188
13,693,859
14,207,047

$
$

$

691,445
552,326
(317,229)
(14,376)
912,166
5,650,437
6,562,603

$

7,359,329

$

7,644,444

49.91%
$

2,978,785
247.06%

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable.

75

$

725,417
543,113
(480,923)
(16,699)
770,908
6,562,603
7,333,511

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability
Covered-employee payroll

198,629
850,123
(82,036)

2016-17

46.19%
$

3,627,285
210.75%
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3. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN, Continued
B. Schedule of Plan Contributions (1)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2019

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)
Contributions in relation to the ADC
Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Covered-employee payroll

$

$

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

714,148
(714,148)
2,978,785

2018
$
$
$

706,115
(706,115)
3,665,994

23.97%

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable.

C. Schedule of Investment Returns —PARS OPEB Trust Program

Year*

Annual
Money-Weighted
Rate of Return, Net
of Investment Expenses

2017
2018
2019

9.80%
8.83%
6.23%

* Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years;
additional years will be displayed as they become available.

76

19.26%

